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Building Description;

A. Building #1 - The Porter Screen Company is a complex of mill buildings, 
grouped tightly on a triangular plot between a city street and rail line. The 
main building on the site is a huge three-story, rectangular mill building 
measuring Z80 x 60 feet. It is of heavy wood frame construction, typical 
of all the mill buildings on the site, and unlike the other buildings, this 
structure (no. 1 on site plan) is sheathed in novelty siding.

The facade is broken up by a regular band of windows stretching 
the length of each side. .These windows had 16 over 16 sash and simple 
frames displaying ho exterior ornamentation. The building is capped by 
a gable-roof with exposed eaves. There is no decorative cornice detail, 
and the present roof covering is tar paper. Fire galvanized metal chimneys 
rise from the ridge of the roof at regular intervals. The only other protru­ 
sion from the roof are a brick fire wall which separates the north quarter of 
the building from the rest, and a flag pole which rises from the peak of the 
north gable.

Inside, square posts support dimension lumber used in floors and 
walls. The interior is one large open space divided solely by the rows of
these regularly spaced posts.

'". j •"' '

The building retains much of its original integrity;. Its only major 
change is on the first floor, where the original floor was. removed and the 
sub-floor excavated approximately six feet to increase the ceiling height. 
This change took place after 1952 when the building was first used for ware­ 
housing: wooden posts were replaced with steel columns, and a concrete 
slab floor was poured. Extra joists were also added to the floors above to 
support heavier loads. The sash in this structure was largely destroyed and 
in 1952, the windows were boarded up with plywood. An enclosed fire stair 
has been removed from the west elevation leaving only its outline on the wall, 
and several large openings have been cut into the interior walls to allow for 
easy shipping and handling of stored goods. A storage area extension was 
created between building one and six after 1952.

This building is salvageable. Its steel and wood frame are structur­ 
ally sound, but the wood siding is in very poor shape and the roof is worn 
and needs replacement.

'Bfrilding^jfo - Building 2 is attached to building 1 at the southwest corner 
and measured 65 x 80 feet. It is a three-story brick building with a heavy 
timber frame supporting interior floors. Two parapets rise above each

(See Continuation Sheet for Description - total 5 pgs. )
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gable end , the east one forming a fire-stop with building 1. The building 
has a sloping gable, and a simple but dignified stepped-brick cornice joins 
exterior wall to roof edge.

Regular fenestration breaks up the wall surface and the windows, 
again once fitted with 16 over 16 sash, have simple wood frames and cast iron 
sills. Flat arches exist above each window. Wooden shutters were once 
used. The only evidence of these are the metal brackets on the side of each 
window and two shutters found deteriorating near the building.

Changes to this building took place after 1952. A large loading bay 
was cut into the south elevation along the rail spur, and three windows were 
cut down to the floor level to facilitate loading. On the north side, a large 
storage area was constructed at the second and third floor, connecting building 
2 with building 5.

The interior of the building has suffered the same alterations as 
^building 1. The first floor was removed, the sub-floor excavated and steel 
posts installed. Wall openings have been cut to facilitate handling. Again, 
exterior windows have all been boarded or bricked in.

Building 2 remains in fair condition. The east fire wall has suffered 
water damage, as has the cornice and parts of the brick facade. There is 
some evidence of cracking and displacement of brick in the wall.

C. Building #3 - Building 3 is a one-story rectangular brick building measuring 
35 x 70 feet. It is a simple structure with a shed roof. The south facade 
had four windows matching those on building 2. The loading bays once located 
on the west elevation have been closed and incorporated into the newer loading 
dock attached at this location.

Alteration, beside the addition of the new loading dock include a large 
gate cut into the south wall ,

D. Building #4 - Built in the 1950's, this one-story structure with shed roof 
contains the loading platform and office of Central Distributing. The wood 
frame is reinforced with steel posts in the loading area. Vertical board 
and batten sheathing covers the exterior walls. The office annex has regular
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fenestration five bays long and two bays wide. Three large truck bays 
create the elevation on uhe west side. This structure built later than the 
other buildings is much less substantial in its construction, and appears 
to have no potential for future significance.

/- j 
j£. Building $6 - Building 5, constructed about 1910, is a rectangular mill

structure measuring 50 x 175 feet. It stands two stories high and is heavy 
timber frame on the interior and brick walls like the other brick buildings 
on the site, its elevations had regular fenestration with 16 over 16 sash and 
cast iron sills. A flat arch forms the window heads. A stepped brick 
cornice joins wall to roof. Unlike the other buildings, building 5 has a very 
shallow double-pitched roof, almost flat in appearance. The entire structure 
sits on a concrete foundation.

This building is in good condition and has had little alteration. Much 
of the interior space remains the same except for changes that are similar 
to the other buildings. The floor has been removed and sub-floor excavated 
to raise ceiling heights. A concrete floor has been laid, openings have been 
cut in interior walls and windows have been boarded.

F. Building #6 - Building 6 is a three-story brick structure 165 x 50 feet.
It is situated parallel to building 1 and joined to it by a series of gangways. 
This mill structure is almost identical to the others already mentioned. 
It has heavy timber frame, brick walls broken by regular window openings 
like those in rest of the site. A gable roof runs the full length of the struc­ 
ture, interrupted only by a fire wall in the north quarter of the building. A 
single chimney rises from the roof in the north-east corner. Unlike the 
other buildings however, its west elevation has no windows, but serves as 
a solid fire wall 165 feet long.

A four-story, brick elevator tower attaches to the building at the 
southeast corner. This structure still houses an original freight elevator, 
still in service.

Changes made to this building have been more severe than elsewhere. 
A large opening has been carved out of the cast elevation at the first level. 
A shed roof has been added to the exterior, and windows have been bricked 
in. All of these changes appear reversible though costly.
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The condition of the building is generally good, except at the first level 
where exposure to moisture (especially at the north end) has damaged brick and 
mortar, causing deterioration.

G. Building #7 - Building 7 was the steam plant for the industrial complex. The 
giant boilers that supplied power to the steam engine take up one-third of the 
space in. this building,, a two-story square structure measuring 75 x 75 feet.

The elevations are unlike any others in the complex. The roof-line is 
similar to a monitor roof except there is no.monitor: . shed r,oofs rise up from 
each end to a flat section in the center. A broad parapet at the east gables 
mimmicks the roof line. There are window openings on the east and south facade. 
The windows are placed in groupings and the doors are randomly situated. Unlike 
the windows in the rest of the complex, these have segmental heads. The doorway 
and double doors have this same treatment, and sash is 25 over 25 and still in 
place.

Severe alterations have taken place to the east and south walls of this 
building. From old site maps, one can identify a pump house that no longer 
stands in this corner of the building. Its destruction has left mismatched brick 
at this location, and the south half of the roof has been raised, disturbing the 
appearance of the building on the south and east sides. A covered loading 
platform has been added to the south side recently and its shoddy lally-column 
construction detracts from the former simple balance of the whole.

The interior spaces of this building have been changed: the two-story 
. space which housed the steam engines has been divided into two separate floors, 

each for storage purposes, and all mechanical equipment has been removed. 
Nevertheless, in spite of the considerable brick repairs necessary, this 
building retains a greater proportion of its original trim than its neighbors, 
and has great potential for restoration.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Porter Screen Company, Winooski, Vermont

The City of Winooski, now emerging from an economic slump, is typical 
of those industrial centers which made New England the very heart of America's 
19th century Industrial Revolution. Today, Winooski is still a city dominated by 
mills, and its picturesque location on a terraced slope overlooking'the fast-moving 
Winooski River across from Burlington give Winooski's mills a visual prominence 
which enhances their already impressive massing and array.

It is largely thanks to these long-underutilized mills that Winooski is now 
entering a new age of activity, and the preservation and adaptive reuse of several 
mill complexes as both housing and commercial space is greatly increasing the 
importance of this recently depressed city to its much larger and active neighbor.

Winooski's industrial importance originated during the Greek Revival era, 
when new immigrant labor and the availability of plentiful water-power fostered 
the founding of the first cotton mill. Textiles were the dominent activity through­ 
out •Winooski 1 s golden era of peak industrial activity, and the Burlington cotton 
mills evolved into the large complex later known as the American Woolen Mills.

Interestingly enough, however, the ephemeral venture capital of 19th cen­ 
tury development did not achieve stability for Winooski; companies and mills 
were constantly reorganized and liquidated, with much concomitant grief and 
suffering. It was not until many of the smaller mills finally reorganized into the 
American Woolen Mills, at the turn of the 20th century, that prosperity became 
a stable way of life, and Winooski reached its zenith and industrial maturity. 
This era was also one of diversification, and the Porter Screen Company was one 
of the most important secondary industries to demonstrate its faith in Winooski 
by relocating there.

The Porter Screen Company is an industrial site important to the social 
and cultural history of the City of Winooski and the State of Vermont. Its products, 
door and window screens, ironing boards and wooden ware, were distributed 
nationwide, and its existence and success contributed to the prosperity that made 

Winooski one of Vermont's leading industrial centers in the first half of the 20th 
century. 

(See Continuation Sheet for Significance of Statement - total 2 pgs. )
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
Property is bounded on the south by the Central Vermont Railroad, on east and 
north by Spring Street, on west by Winooski Valley Family 'Health Center, and 
by Winooski Housing Authority. The property is triangular. (See Cont. sheet 10-1) 
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Much of the site remains intact and unaltered, increasing its significance 
as an historic and architectural landmark in this industrial city.

The Porter Screen Company was chartered in August 1881 by E. N. Porter 
of Hardwick, Vermont. The company was established first in Burlington but 
moved to Winooski in 1893, locating at the foot of Barlow Street. Unfortunately, 
a fire at this location destroyed the building in 1900 and a new site was chosen 
along the Central Vermont Rail lines between East Alien and Spring Street. Be­ 
tween 1901 and 1910, an impressive complex of mill buildings, warehouses, and 
service buildings were constructed to house Porter Screen, many of which still 
stand today.

Good business acumen, excellent transportation facilities, and a ready 
market helped make Porter Screen Company a financial success. Lumber was 
brought in by rail, stockpiled in huge yards across from the plant; sorted, cut, 
finished and assembled into windows, doors and other wood products. As early 
as 1904, two hundred and fifty people were employed making 6, 000 window screens 
and 1, 600 doors a day.

The company operated successfully through much of the first half of the 
20th century. It was the largest company of its kind, devoted primarily to the 
manufacture of adjustable screens. Porter Screen expanded by merging and 
acquiring other screen plants. In 1906 it merged with the Continental Screen 
Company of Detroit greatly improving the distribution of its products to the 
Midwest. In 1911, Porter Screen acquired the Roll-A-Way Screen Company of 
Brocton, Massachusetts and moved it to Winooski. A two-story brick building 
was constructed to house the manufacture of "roll-a-way" metal screens. This 
operation was discontinued in 1916 because of the unreliable nature of the product. 
By 1950 the demand for wood screens had diminished as aluminum windows con­ 
sumed more and more of the market. With this factor in mind, Henry T. Way, 
the last president, closed the plant on April 1, 1952 and converted the buildings 
into warehouses. In 1959 the entire complex was sold to Central Distributing 
Corporation who continue to use the buildings as warehouse space.
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PORTER SCREEN COMPANY, WINOOSKI, CHITTENDEN COUNTY, VT

The two buildings within the nominated area and to the east of the main 
complex were found to have lost sufficient integrity through deteriora­ 
tion and alteration as to no longer meet the criteria for inclusion in 
the National Register.
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On the south, the boundary extends approximately 810 feet along the north side of the 
Central Vermont Railroad tracks; on the north, approximately 750 feet along the south 
side of East Spring Street; and on the west approximately 625 feet along a property 
boundary shared with the Winooski Valley Family Health Center and the Winooski 
Housing Authority. The property is further described in Vol. 37, p. 478-481 of the 
Winooski Land Records at the City Clerk's Office.
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